NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 10, 2023
START TIME: 2:45 P.M.
LOCATION: 15850 W. KEARNEY BLVD., KERMAN CA.

AGENDA

Anyone wishing to address the Board on any agenda item, can do so by written
communication or in person during a Board of Directors meeting. In order to allow time
for all public comments, individuals are limited to five minutes total for each action item.

1.

CALL TO ORDER
A) Roll Call

INVOCATION AND FLAG SALUTE

. PUBLIC COMMENTS

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A) Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of August 24, 2023

RESOLUTION NO. 23-11 AMENDING RESOLUTION 23-04 TO MAKE
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE PERSONNEL SPECIALIST JOB TITLE AND SALARY
SCALE

A) Action item - Consider and adopt Resolution No. 23-11 amending Resolution No.
23-04 to make adjustments to the Personnel Specialist job title and salary scale.

APPARATUS PURCHASE FINANCING AGENCY

A) Action item — Consider and approve contracting with Brandis Tallman (a division
of Oppenheimer & Co., Inc.) for financing the purchase of three apparatus and
authorize the Fire Chief to execute all required documents related to the financing.

BOARD MEETING DATES — CALENDAR YEAR 2024
A) Action item — Consider and approve proposed board meeting dates for the 2024
calendar year.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

. CLOSED SESSION

A) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION
(Government Code 54956.9(d)(1).)
Name of Case: Savitt v. North Central Fire Protection District
Case No. OAH No. 2022120027



B) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of Subdivision (d) of
Section 54956.9: Number of cases: 1

10.BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS/REPORTS

11.ANNOUNCEMENTS
A) Regular Board Meeting: Thursday, October 26, 2023, at 4:30 p.m.
B) Regular Board Meeting: Thursday, November 16, 2023, at 4:30 p.m.
C) Regular Board Meeting: Thursday, December 14, 2023, at 4:30 p.m.

12. ADJOURNMENT

PUBLIC COMMENTS AND INQUIRIES

At a Board meeting, those who wish to be heard on matters on the agenda should indicate their desire to speak when the item
is ready for discussion. If, at the meeting, you wish to discuss an item, which is not on the agenda, you may indicate your desire
to do so under “Public Comments”. In order to allow time for all public comments and inquiries, the time for individual comments
may, at the discretion of the Chairman of the Board, be limited to five minutes. If you wish to request time on an upcoming Board
Agenda to present a particular item or matter to the Board, you may contact the District by 5:00 p.m. seven business days prior
to the scheduled Board meeting to so request. If the matter is within the Board’s jurisdiction, and the Board has not taken action
or considered the item at a recent meeting, the District may place the item on the agenda. When addressing the Board, you are
requested to come forward to the speaker’s podium, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to participate at this meeting, please
contact the District at 559-878-4550. Notification provided a minimum of 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to
make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to
the physically disabled.



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
THURSDAY AUGUST 24, 2023
START TIME: 4:30 P.M.
LOCATION: 15850 W. KEARNEY BLVD., KERMAN CA.

MINUTES

Anyone wishing to address the Board on any agenda item, can do so by written
communication or in person during a Board of Directors meeting. In order to allow time
for all public comments, individuals are limited to five minutes total for each action item.

1.

CALL TO ORDER
Meeting called to order at 4:40 p.m.

Roll Call
Board Members Present: Mr. Michael Golden, Mr. Rusty
Nonini, Mr. Ken Abrahamian, and Ms. Amanda Souza

Mr. Michael Foglio was absent.

. INVOCATION AND FLAG SALUTE

Invocation was led by Pastor Tom Boonstra of Kerman Baptist Church and the flag
salute was led by Chief Henry.

PUBLIC COMMENTS
There were no public comments.

CONSENT AGENDA
A) Consideration and Approval of Disbursements Lists for July 2023
B) Review and Acceptance of Monthly Financial Reports
1) Fresno County: Cash Balances — All Funds
2) Budget Variance Report: YTD Expenses Compared to Budget
3) Revenue and Reimbursement Report
C) Resolution 23-09 — First Amendment to the 2022-2023 Fiscal Year Adopted
Final Budget

MOTION: To approve the consent agenda as presented.
Moved by: Mr.Nonini, second by Mr. Abrahamian.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Absent Aye Aye 4/0

. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A) Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of July 27, 2023



MOTION: To approve the minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of July 27, 2023
Moved by: Mr. Golden, second by Ms. Souza

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Absent Aye Aye 4/0

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A) Minutes of the Special Board Meeting of August 9, 2023

MOTION: To approve the minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of August 9, 2023
Moved by: Mr. Golden, second by Mr. Nonini.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Absent Aye Aye 4/0

7. PUBLIC HEARING FOR WEED ABATEMENT AND LIST OF ABATEMENT
NOTICES
A) Action Item - Conduct Public Hearing and Review List of Notices

Mr. Abrahamian opened the floor for the Public Protest Hearing for public
comments on the 2023 weed abatement season at 4:44 p.m.

No members from the public addressed the Board. Mr. Abrahamian closed the
floor for the Public Protest Hearing for the 2023 weed abatement season at 4:45
p.m.

Chief Kutka summarized for the Board of Directors a review of the notice and
inspections that have been given for the year.

8. RESOLUTION NO. 23-08 - WEED ABATEMENT TAX ROLL ASSESSMENT
A) Action item — Consider and adopt Resolution No. 23-08 to place weed abatement
charges on the tax roll for the 2023-2024 fiscal year.

MOTION: Adopt Resolution No. 23-08 to place weed abatement charges on the
tax roll for the 2023-2024 fiscal year.

Moved by: Ms. Souza, second by Mr. Golden.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Absent Aye Aye 4/0



9. PUBLIC HEARING AND ADOPTION OF THE 2023-2024 FISCAL YEAR FINAL
BUDGET
A) Action item - Conduct Public Hearing and adopt the 2023-2024 Fiscal Year Final
Budget.

Mr. Abrahamian opened the floor for Public Hearing for public comments on the
2023-2024 Fiscal Year Final Budget at 4:53 p.m.

No members from the public addressed the Board. Mr. Abrahamian closed the
floor for the Public Hearing for the 2023-2024 Fiscal Year Final Budget 4:54 p.m.

Shannon Schroth gave the board a detailed review and breakdown of the changes
from the estimated amounts included in the Preliminary Budget and amended to
the 2023-2024 Final Budget.

Chief Henry gave a few specific details regarding the budget and planned capital
spending for the next 20 years.

MOTION: Adopt 2023-2024 Fiscal Year Final Budget
Moved by: Mr. Abrahamian, second by Mr. Nonini.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Absent Aye Aye 4/0

10.FIRE CHIEF REPORT

A) Fire Incident/Fire Prevention Reports for July

B) Fireworks Citations and Appeals Hearing Update
C) Operational Update

D) Finance Management Policy Manual Update

11.RESOLUTION NO. 23-06 A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE
OPENING OF A RESERVE ACCOUNT
A) Action item - Consider and adopt Resolution No. 23-06 authorizing the opening
of a reserve account

Moved to next month’s agenda

12.RESOLUTION NO. 23-10 — AUTHORIZING THE DISPOSITION OF EXCESS
DISTRICT PROPERTY
A) Action item — Consider and adopt Resolution No. 23-10 authorizing the disposition
of excess District property.



MOTION: To Consider and adopt Resolution No. 23-10 authorizing the disposition of
excess District property.

Moved by: Mr. Nonini, second by Ms. Souza.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Absent Aye Aye 4/0

13. CONSIDERATION OF INSURANCE CLAIM AGAINST DISTRICT
A) Action item - Consideration of Claim filed under the California Tort Claims Act and
Authorization to refer matter to District's Insurance Carrier, Fire Agencies Insurance
Risk Authority (FAIRA), Claimant Richard D Barr, Fresno California.

Legal Counsel Mr. Price gave a brief review on legal recourse regarding claims that
are brought against the district.

MOTION: To reject the subject claim and refer it to the District’s insurance company
(FAIRA) for further action.

Moved by: Mr. Golden, second by Mr. Abrahamian.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Absent Aye Aye 4/0

14.SITE SUBLEASE AGREEMENT WITH COUNTY OF MADERA
A) Action item - Consider and approve a sublease agreement with the County of
Madera (on behalf of the Madera County Sheriff's Department) regarding the
Loperena Antenna Site, and Authorize the Fire Chief to execute this Agreement
and subsequent sublease agreements with the City of Fresno and County of
Fresno for the Loperena Antenna Site

Chief Henry gave the Board Members a summarized history of the site sublease
agreement and the current request from County of Madera.

MOTION: To Consider and approve Site Sublease Agreement with County of Madera
and authorize Chief Henry to sign this and subsequent agreements with Fresno City and
Fresno County.

Moved by: Mr. Nonini, second by Mr. Golden.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Absent Aye Aye 4/0

15.CLOSED SESSION
A) REMOVED FROM CLOSED SESSION

16. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS/REPORTS
No Comments



17. ANNOUNCEMENTS
Regular Board Meeting: Thursday, September 28, 2023, at 4:30 p.m.

18. ADJOURNMENT
MOTION: To ADJOURN the meeting at 6:00 p.m.
Moved by: Mr. Nonini second by Mr. Golden

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Absent Aye Aye 4/0

Amanda Souza, Board Secretary Date
North Central Fire Protection District



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Board of Directors: Ken Abrahamian * Michael Foglio
Michael Golden * Rusty Nonini * Amanda Souza

Fire Chief: Timothy V. Henry, CFO, EFO

Fire Headquarters

15850 W. Kearney Boulevard
Kerman, California 93630-9335

(559) 878-4550 » FAX (559) 846-3788
www.northcentralfire.org

MEMORANDUM
TO: North Central Board of Directors
FROM: Tim Henry, Fire Chief
DATE: October 10, 2023

SUBJECT: Board Meeting Dates for 2024

Below is a list of tentative dates set for the 2024 regular board meetings. All the meetings
are scheduled for the fourth Thursday of each month, except the May, November and
December meetings, which are scheduled on the third Thursday of the month
respectively. All the meetings are scheduled for 4:30 p.m.

Please review the list for any possible conflicts with your schedules.

January 25, 2024 July 25, 2024
February 22, 2024 August 22, 2024
March 28, 2024 September 26, 2024
April 25, 2024 October 24, 2024
May 16, 2024 November 21, 2024
June 27, 2024 December 19, 2024

Recommended Action: Consider and approve the dates and times scheduled for the
2024 board meetings.

“Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Board of Directors: Ken Abrahamian « Michael Foglio
Michael Golden * Rusty Nonini * Amanda Souza

Fire Chief: Timothy V. Henry, CFO, EFO

Fire Headquarters

156850 W. Kearney Boulevard
Kerman, California 93630-9335

(559) 878-4550 « FAX (559) 846-3788
www.northcentralfire.org

MEMORANDUM
TO: North Central Board of Directors
FROM: Tim Henry, Fire Chief

DATE: October 10, 2023

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 23-11 — To Amend Resolution No. 23-04 to Make
Adjustments to The Personnel Specialist Job Title and Salary Scale

The regular board meeting on May 25, 2023 adopted Resolution 23-04 to establish a
Personnel Specialist position and salary scale. Prior to adoption the Board of Directors
had expressed concern regarding the ability to draw qualified candidates at the salary
scale. The Board adopted Resolution 23-04 with the understanding that if the District does
not get the pool of applicants needed from the job market, then staff would present an
amended resolution to adjust the Personnel Specialist salary scale.

Staff is recommending retitling the Personnel Specialist position to Human Resource
Manager to provide a more comprehensive description of the duties and responsibilities
of the position as they encompass various organizational functions, and to be more in line
with special districts statewide.

The District has been unable to solicit a qualified applicant pool from the job market,
therefore, Resolution 23-11 is to amend the Personnel Specialist position to a sliding
salary scale.

Recommended Action: Considerand adopt Resolution No. 23-11 amending Resolution
No. 23-04 to make adjustments to the Personnel Specialist job title and salary scale.

“Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”



RESOLUTION No. 23-11

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE NORTH
CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT TO AMEND
RESOLUTION NO. 23-04 TO MAKE ADJUSTMENTS TO THE
PERSONNEL SPECIALIST JOB TITLE AND SALARY SCALE.

WHEREAS, the North Central Fire Protection District (DISTRICT) is a California
special district located in the County of Fresno, and

WHEREAS, it is the DISTRICT's desire to provide fair and legal payment to all
its employees for time worked; and

WHEREAS, the DISTRICT has in its employ, SAFETY AND NON-SAFETY
employees; and

WHEREAS, there is a need to amend Resolution No. 23-04 adopted at a regular
board meeting on May 25, 2023,

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the DISTRICT has reviewed the proposed
salaries for all of its employees; and

WHEREAS, the DISTRICT shall enter into a separate employment agreement with
the Fire Chief; and

WHEREAS, the DISTRICT will compensate its employees’ overtime in
accordance with this SALARIES AND BENEFITS RESOLUTION while during the
course of their employment and away from their official duty station and assigned
to an emergency incident, in support of an emergency incident, or pre-positioned
for emergency response as defined in the California Fire Assistance Agreement or
Mutual-Aid Agreements.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the conditions set forth in this
resolution, as stated below, take effect upon adoption by the North Central Fire
Protection District Board of Directors.

1. Compensation. A base salary range for each employee position are
established in Exhibit A1.

2. Premium Pay. Suppression personnel will receive a ten percent (10%)
Premium Pay for forty-hour (40) Staff positions.

3. Uniform Allowance. The District shall reimburse employee for the actual
cost of any expenses incurred to purchase or replace a District

Page 1 of 4



authorized uniform, up to Five Hundred Fifty and No/100 Dollars
($550.00) per fiscal year.

4. Vacation. All vacation time shall be earned and credited to permanent
employees on a monthly basis. Mid-Management is credited 1/3 of their
vacation hours on the first day of the Fiscal Year. Employees in the
following job classes shall earn annual vacation per the following:

40-hour Shift Employees
a. Up to and including five years of service — ten (10) working days.
Mid-Management 15 days
b. Six years through ten years of service — fourteen (14) working
days. Mid-Management 17.5 days.
c. Eleven years of service or more — eighteen (18) working days.
Mid-Management 20 days.

56-hour Shift Employees
a. Up to and including five years of service — five (5) shifts (120
hours). Mid-Management 7.5 shifts
b. Six years through ten years of service — seven (7) shifts (168
hours). Mid-Management 10 shifts
c. Eleven years of service or more — nine (9) shifts (216 hours). Mid-
Management 12 shifts

*Mid-Management are those positions that are FLSA overtime exempt.

5. Sick Leave. Fifty-six (56) hour employees shall accrue sick leave at the
rate of 12 hours a month, and forty (40) hour employees accrue sick
leave at the rate of 8 hours a month. Part-time employees will be
provided the state minimum required 24 hours (3 days) of sick leave at
the beginning of each 12-month period.

6. Health and Welfare Contribution. The District will make available group
medical, dental, optical and life insurance to all fulltime employees;
however, DISTRICT'’s contribution shall be 80% of the total cost for
these benefits with a maximum DISTRICT contribution of $1,600 per
month effective January 1, 2021.

7. Holiday Pay.
40-hour employees are eligible for a maximum of 88 hours of paid

holiday time. When a holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday
will be observed as the holiday. When a holiday falls on a Saturday,
the preceding Friday will be observed as the holiday. Any employee
whose regular assignment requires work on a holiday shall receive
compensatory pay at straight time equal to the number of hours worked.
Likewise, when the holiday falls on the employee’s regularly scheduled

Page 2 of 4



day off, they shall receive one day of compensatory pay. No leave
hours shall carryover to the next year to be cashed out. The Fire Chief
may on occasion assign certain employees to work on a designated
holiday. When this occurs, the employee shall receive one hour of paid
overtime for each hour worked.

The District provides a maximum total of 88 hours paid holiday time per
calendar year to 40-hour employees. This equals to ten (10) regular 8-
hour workdays and two (2) 2 days or four (4) work hours each, on
Christmas Eve Day, December 24", and Friday afternoon prior to
Easter Sunday.

56-hour employees are compensated an additional 2 time when
working a District recognized holiday.

The District recognized holidays are:

1. New Year's Day, January 1

2. Martin Luther King Day, Third Monday in January
3. Washington’s Birthday, Third Monday in February
4. Memorial Day, Fourth Monday in May

5. Independence Day, July 4

6. Labor Day, First Monday in September

7. Veterans Day, November 11

8. Thanksgiving Day, Fourth Thursday in November
9. Day After Thanksgiving Day

10. Christmas Day, December 25

. Retirement.

The District adopted a 401(a) Defined Benefit Plan at a special board
meeting held on December 12, 2018. Under this Plan, the District will
contribute 13.02% for safety employees and 12.72% for non-safety
employees of an employee’s base salary.

kekkhkhhkkkkkk

This Resolution supersedes and replaces all prior District resolutions establishing
salaries and benefits to current and future employees as of the date of adoption of
this resolution.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the North
Central Fire Protection District held on this 10th day of October 2023 by the
following vote:

Page 3 of 4



ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:
APPROVED:
Ken Abrahamian, Board Chairperson
North Central Fire Protection District
ATTEST:

Amanda Souza, Board Secretary
North Central Fire Protection District

CERTIFICATE

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF FRESNO ) ss.
CITY OF KERMAN )

I, Amanda Souza, Board Secretary of the North Central Fire Protection
District, do hereby certify the foregoing Resolution of the Board of Directors of the
North Central Fire Protection District was duly passed and adopted at a regular
meeting of the Board of Directors on October 10, 2023.

DATED: October 10, 2023

Amanda Souza, Board Secretary

Page 4 of 4



"EXHIBIT A1"
RESOLUTION NO. 23-04

NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

SALARY SCALE
EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 10, 2023

Position Pay Rate Step | Step Il Step lll
Monthly Base P: 4,619 4,862
Firefighter | Ry =
el Annual Base Pay 55,428 58,344
]
Monthly Base P: 5,131 5,401 5,686
'E Firefighter Il onthly Base Pay
7] Annual Base Pay 61,572 64,812 68,232
z ) Monthly Base Pay 5,650 5,946 6,259
4 Engineer
g Annual Base Pay 67,800 71,352 75,108
74 Captain Monthly Base Pay 6,213 6,541 6,885
4 Annual Base Pay 74,556 78,492 82,620
hly B 10,231 10,770
Battalion Chief Monthly Base Pay o
Annual Base Pay 116,616 122,772 129,240
Monthly Base Pa 11,309 11,874 12,468
; E Division Chief 4 4
] |.<|. Annual Base Pay 135,708 142,493 149,612
§ 0? The District Deputy Fire Chief salary is based on a salary range
‘zt E Deputy Chief Monthly Salary Range 11,639 - 13,217
‘Et g Annual Salary Range 139,668 - 158,604
n The District Fire Chief salary is based on a salary range
Fire Chief Monthly Salary Range 11,751 - 15,626
Annual Salary Range 141,012 - 187,506
t Monthly Base Pay 5,554 5,845 6,153
z W Inspector
g L:: Annual Base Pay 66,648 70,140 73,836
£ 2 | CommunityRisk | Moninly Base Pay 4,833 5,043 5,358
o Reduction
z Specialist Annual Base Pay 57,996 60,516 64,296
The District Business Manager salary is based on a salary range
eneral Monthly Salary Range 5,438 - 8,708
Manager
Annual Salary Range 65,256 - 104,496
Executive Monthly Base Pay 5,102 5,370 5,654
Assistant Annual Base Pay 61,224 64,440 67,848
The Human Resource Manager salary is based on a salary range
Human Resource
LemEas Monthly Salary Range 5,438 - 8,500
Annual Salary Range 65,256 - 102,000
% Specialist Annual Base-Pay 57,060 59,913 62,909
7]
Z Principal Account Monthly Base Pay 4,556 4,796 5,048
=]
z Clerk Annual Base Pay 54,672 57,552 60,576
> Senior Account Monthly Base Pay 4,012 4,223 4,446
g Clerk Annual Base Pay 48,144 50,676 53,352
‘; Adminstrative Monthly Base Pay 2,758 2,895 3,041
o Clerk Annual Base Pay 33,096 34,740 36,492
Information Monthly Base Pay 4,539 4778 5,030
Technology
Manager Annual Base Pay 54,468 57,336 60,360
Property Monthly Base Pay 4,328 4,545 4,772
Maintenance
Worker | Annual Base Pay 51,936 54,540 57,264
Property Monthly Base Pay 5,011 5,262 5,525
Maintenance
Worker il Annual Base Pay 60,132 63,144 66,300

Paid Intern

$15 an hour or State of California Minimum Wage, whichever is higher.




"EXHIBIT A1"
RESOLUTION NO. 23-04

NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

SALARY SCALE
EFFECTIVE JANUARY 01, 2024

Position Pay Rate Step | Step Il Step Il
Monthly B P 4,758 5,008
Firefighter | ORI RSy 0
t Annual Base Pay 57,096 60,096
w
Monthly Base P 5,285 5,563 5,857
P Firefighter Il onihly Base ay
” Annual Base Pay 63,420 66,756 70,284
Z , Monthly Base Pay 5,820 6,124 6,447
74 Engineer
g Annual Base Pay 69,840 73,488 77,364
n Catain Monthly Base Pay 6,399 6,737 7,092
P Annual Base Pay 76,788 80,844 85,104
M P . _ 538 11,003
Battalion Chief onthly Base Pay 10,010 10,5
Annual Base Pay 120,120 126,456 133,116
Monthly Base Pa 11,648 12,230 12,842
E E Devision Chief 4 4
] ;;‘ Annual Base Pay 139,779 146,763 154,104
§ UI! The District Deputy Fire Chief salary is based on a salary range
<zt E Deputy Chief Monthly Salary Range 11,639 - 13,217
g g Annual Salary Range 139,668 - 158,604
w The District Fire Chief salary is based on a salary range
Fire Chief Monthly Salary Range 11,751 - 15,626
Annual Salary Range 141,012 - 187,506
t Monthly Base Pay 5,721 6,020 6,338
Zz W Inspector
g # Annual Base Pay 68,652 72,240 76,056
3 2 Community Risk | onthly Base Pay 4,978 5,194 5,519
o Reduction
z Specialist Annual Base Pay 59,736 62,328 66,228
. | The District Business Manager salary is based on a salary range
enera
Manager Monthly Salary Range 5,438 - 8,969
Annual Salary Range 65,256 - 107,628
Executive Monthly Base Pay 5,255 5,531 5,824
Assistant Annual Base Pay 63,060 66,372 69,888
The Human Resource Manager salary is based on a salary range
Human Resource
Manager Monthly Salary Range 5,438 - 8,755
E Annual Salary Range 65,256 - 105,060
3 Principal Account | Monthly Base Pay 4,693 4,940 5,199
z Clerk Annual Base Pay 56,316 59,280 62,388
z Senior Account Monthly Base Pay 4,132 4,350 4,579
= Clerk Annual Base Pay 49,584 52,200 54,948
14
=] Adminstrative Monthly Base Pay 2,841 2,982 3,132
5 Clerk Annual Base Pay 34,092 35,784 37,584
2 =
o Information Monthly Base Pay 4,675 4,921 5,181
z Technology
Manager Annual Base Pay 56,100 59,052 62,172
Property Monthly Base Pay 4,458 4,681 4,915
Maintenance
Worker Annual Base Pay 53,496 56,172 58,980
Property Monthly Base Pay 5,161 5419 5,690
Maintenance
Worker Il Annual Base Pay 61,932 65,028 68,280
Paid intern $15 an hour or State of California Minimum Wage, whichever is higher.




NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Board of Directors: Ken Abrahamian « Michael Foglio
Michael Golden « Rusty Nonini + Amanda Souza

Fire Chief: Timothy V. Henry, CFO, EFO

Fire Headquarters

16850 W. Kearney Boulevard
Kerman, California 93630-9335

(559) 878-4550 * FAX (559) 846-3788
www.northcentralfire.org

MEMORANDUM
TO: North Central Board of Directors
FROM: Timothy Henry, Fire Chief
DATE: October 10, 2023

SUBJECT: Apparatus Lease Purchase Financing

As part of the 2021 and 2022 budget processes, the Board authorized the lease purchase
of three fire apparatus which are currently in production. The first apparatus was ordered
in November 2021 and is anticipated to be received in November/December 2023. The
other two apparatus were ordered in August 2022 and are anticipated to be received in
March and April 2024 respectively.

Staff has obtained quotes from three entities that specialize in financing for municipal
entities and special districts: Community Leasing Partners and Brandis Tallman (a
division of Oppenheimer & Co., Inc.), both of which the district has utilized in the past,
and Municipal Finance Corporation working in conjunction with the California Special
Districts Association.

Attached is a comparative summary of quotes from the three entities reflecting the
proposed interest rates, payment term, costs or other fees and financing structure under
a 10-year payment term.

Based on the quoted rates, staff recommends proceeding with Brandis Tallman for the
equipment financing. Even with proposed issuance costs, the quoted interest rate
provides the lowest overall cost for the district over the financing period.

Recommended Action: Consider and approve contracting with Brandis Tallman (a
division of Oppenheimer & Co., Inc.) for financing the purchase of three apparatus and
authorize the Fire Chief to execute all required documents related to the financing.

“Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”



North Central Fire Protection District
Fire Apparatus Financing Quotes

October 2023
Community Leasing Partners Oppenheimer & Co. CSDA Finance Corp.
Amount Financed S 2,841,000.00 $ 2,841,000.00 S 2,807,500.00
Down Payment S . S s $ -
Prepayment Discount S - S - S -
Issuance Cost ) - S 12,500.00 S -
Documentation Fee S - S - S 7,500.00
Closing Fee S - S a $ -
Total Financing S 2,841,000.00 $ 2,853,500.00 $ 2,815,000.00
Interest Rate 5.14% 4.588% 4.99%
Annual Payment S 365,348.77 S 359,001.90 S 360,940.34
Payment Amount S 365,348.77 S 179,500.95 $ 360,940.34
Total Financing Amount S 3,653,487.70 S 3,590,018.97 S 3,365,635.00
Total Interest & Other Costs S 812,487.70 S 736,51897 S 550,635.00
Payment Frequency Annual Semi-Annual Annual
Finance Structure

Date Available

November 1,2023 $ 916,000.00 $ 2,841,000.00 S 2,807,500.00

March 1,2024 $ 945,000.00
April 1,2024 $ 980,000.00
Total $ 2,841,000.00 $ 2,841,000.00 $ 2,807,500.00
Prepayment Terms In full after half the term in par. Unused Disbursement  Repayment option by
sits in escrow account year 5 - unused

disbursement sits in
an escrow account



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Board of Directors: Ken Abrahamian ¢ Michael Foglio
Michael Golden « Rusty Nonini « Amanda Souza

Fire Chief: Timothy V. Henry, CFO, EFO

Fire Headquarters

15850 W. Kearney Boulevard
Kerman, California 93630-9335

(559) 878-4550 + FAX (559) 846-3788
www.northcentralfire.org

MEMORANDUM
TO: North Central Board of Directors
FROM: Tim Henry, Fire Chief
DATE: October 10, 2023

SUBJECT: Board Meeting Dates for 2024

Below is a list of tentative dates set for the 2024 regular board meetings. All the meetings
are scheduled for the fourth Thursday of each month, except the May, November and
December meetings, which are scheduled on the third Thursday of the month
respectively. All the meetings are scheduled for 4:30 p.m.

Please review the list for any possible conflicts with your schedules.

January 25, 2024 July 25, 2024
February 22, 2024 August 22, 2024
March 28, 2024 September 26, 2024
April 25, 2024 October 24, 2024
May 16, 2024 November 21, 2024
June 27, 2024 December 19, 2024

Recommended Action: Consider and approve the dates and times scheduled for the
2024 board meetings.

“Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Board of Directors: Ken Abrahamian ¢ Michael Foglio
Michael Golden « Rusty Nonini « Amanda Souza

Fire Chief: Timothy V. Henry, CFO, EFO

Fire Headquarters

16850 W. Kearney Boulevard
Kerman, California 93630-9335

(659) 878-4550 « FAX (559) 846-3788
www .northcentralfire.org

MEMORANDUM
TO: North Central Board of Directors
FROM: Timothy Henry, Fire Chief

DATE: October 10, 2023

SUBJECT: Case Decision Savitt v. North Central Fire Protection District Case No.
OAH No. 2022120027

The District has received the judicial decision regarding the legal action undertaken in
Savitt v. North Central Fire Protection District Case No. OAH No. 2022120027.

Government Code section 11517 states that the District must serve the decision to Mr.
Savitt and his attorney within 30 days of “receipt” of the decision. That action was
completed by District counsel on

Additionally, the District has 100 days to decide whether it wants to:

(1) adopt the decision entirely;

(2) reduce the decision and adopt the balance of the decision;

(3) make technical or minor changes and then adopt the decision;

(4) reject the decision and refer it back to the Administrative Law Judge
with more evidence; or

(5) reject the decision and the District decides on its own.

As the decision was rendered in the District’s favor, staff is recommending that the
board adopt the decision in its entirety under option (1).

Recommended Action: Adopt the decision rendered in Savitt v. North Central Fire
Protection District Case No. OAH No. 2022120027 in its entirety with no modifications.

“Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”



BEFORE THE
OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of:
JEREMY SAVITT, Appellant,
VvS.
NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, Respondent.

OAH No. 2022120027

PROPOSED DECISION

Administrative Law Judge Ed Washington, Office of Administrative Hearings
(OAH), State of California, heard this matter by videoconference on April 11 and 12,
2023, and May 16 and 17, 2023, from Sacramento, California.

Attorney Diane E. Coderniz represented the North Central Fire Protection

District (District).
Attorney Taylor Davies-Mahaffey represented Jeremy Savitt (Appellant).

Evidence was received and the hearing concluded. The record remained open
through June 27, 2023, to allow the parties to submit written post-hearing briefs. All
briefs were timely submitted. The record closed and the matter was submitted for

decision on June 27, 2023.



FACTUAL FINDINGS

Procedural Background

1. At all times relevant to these proceedings, appellant was employed as a

Fire Captain for the District.

2. Timothy Henry is the Fire Chief, Chief Financial Officer, Executive Fire
Officer, and chief administrator for the District. He is the appointing authority in this

matter.

3. On or about August 18, 2022, appellant was served with a Notice of
Intention to Recommend Disciplinary Action and Right to Respond (Notice of Intent to
Discipline) by the District. The Notice specified that Chief Henry intended to
recommend that appellant be terminated from employment. The Notice set forth the
bases for the proposal to terminate and advised appellant of his rights to respond

pursuant to Skelly v. State Personnel Board (1975) 15 Cal.3d 194.

4., On or about September 8, 2022, appellant attended and participated in a
Skelly conference. On September 14, 2022, the District served appellant with a Notice

of Termination, signed by Chief Henry in his official capacity.

5. The Notice of Termination specified that, after considering all
information appellant presented, the District was terminating him based on findings in
a recent Internal Affairs Investigation Report, which concluded appellant violated the
District’'s Work Permit Policy, General Order Policy, General Conduct Policy, Duty of All

Members Policy, and Fire Captain Policy.



6. The Notice of Termination described the factual bases for the alleged
violations as appellant’s: failure to obtain a work permit for an outside business;
engaging in secondary employment while on injury status; violating legal requirements
related to operating a business; using District resources to promote his personal
business; asking his training officer to declare that he had demonstrated proficiency in
tasks not performed in a formalized setting; and taunting his training officer for

reporting policy violations.

7. The Notice of Termination also advised appellant of his right to appeal
the decision to terminate his employment. Appellant timely exercised his right to
appeal, and the matter was set for an evidentiary hearing before an administrative law
judge of the OAH. The hearing was conducted pursuant to the Firefighters Procedural

Bill of Rights Act, Government Code sections 3250 et seq., and 11500, et seq.
The History and Structure of the District

8. The District was formed in 1947 and provided fire protection to Fresno
County and the surrounding area. In 2007, the fire protection responsibilities were
contracted out to the City of Fresno. The District was reestablished in 2018 and began
providing services to the area again in July 2019. The District is responsible for an area
of approximately 230 square miles, which includes the unincorporated areas of Fresno

County and the surrounding area.

) Chief Henry's direct reports include the personnel officer, manager of
administration and finance, an administrative assistant, and Deputy Fire Chief Jacob
McAfee. Deputy Chief McAfee’s responsibilities include oversight of District operations
and training. He oversees the District’s Battalion Chiefs, who oversee the District's six

fire stations, which are each operated by a Fire Captain. Each Fire Captain manages a



fire station, staffed by a company that includes a fire engineer, and one to two

firefighters.
Appellant’s Employment with the District

10.  Inor around May 2019, the District hired several Fire Captains, including
appellant, to manage its fire stations. Appellant had previously worked for the
California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection for 11 years. He has worked in

fire protection since 1996.

11.  Appellant received two performance evaluations while working for the
District. His evaluation reports reflect that, on December 15, 2019, and July 23, 2020,
he was rated as "Outstanding 50-74%,” by his supervisor, Battalion Chief Michael

Pavone. Appellant passed probation on July 31, 2020.

12.  On or about August 19, 2020, appellant went on medical leave due to a
workplace injury. He responded to the scene of a motor vehicle accident and tore his

bicep while lifting the hood of a vehicle.
THE CAPN’S MUSHROOM COMPANY

13.  While on medical leave, appellant researched alternative forms of
healing. He did not like the way his pain medication made him feel. He grew
mushrooms as a hobby to keep him busy and because of their beneficial health
effects. Appellant’s hobby grew quickly. He initially grew mushrooms in his garage for
his own use and sometimes provided grow kits to friends and family. He also provided
grow kits and dried mushrooms to coworkers. He sold mushrooms at farmers markets,
online, and to local restaurants. Appellant also partnered with a local coffee shop to

create and sell a coffee powder with mushrooms. He also produced and sold dried

4



mushrooms and mushroom coffee. Appellant, along with his business partner and
friend, eventually created a mushroom farm in a dedicated structure and established

an online marketplace to sell mushrooms.

14.  Appellant named his mushroom company “The Capn’s Mushroom
Company,” and used his position as a firefighter to promote mushroom sales. The logo
for the company includes a bulldog wearing a firefighter's helmet. The main website
for the company states that the company is “Firefighter Owned & Operated.” The
online marketplace, which includes a dedicated webpage and appellant’s personal
Facebook page, included photographs of firefighters eating mushrooms produced by
appellant and references firefighters reportedly benefiting from The Capn’s Mushroom

Company products.

15.  As a Fire Captain, appellant was aware that District policy requires
approval to operate an outside business. However, appellant viewed The Capn’s
Mushroom Company as a hobby rather than a business and did not feel authorization

from the District was necessary.

16.  Appellant returned to work with light duty restrictions in April 2021.
While on light duty assignment, appellant performed office tasks and reported his
timekeeping to Chief Henry's executive assistant, Adelina Acosta-Fisher. He discussed
his mushroom company with Ms. Acosta-Fisher and provided her with samples of his
products. He also provided her with a mushroom grow kit, for which he reluctantly
accepted payment. Chief Henry noticed the mushroom grow kit on Ms. Acosta-Fisher's
desk and briefly joined in a discussion with her and appellant about the benefits of
mushrooms and appellant’s growing and selling activities. When Chief Henry left the
room, appellant asked Ms. Acosta-Fisher if she thought he should seek a work permit
from the District authorizing him to engage in outside work due to his sale of

5



mushrooms and mushroom products. Ms. Acosta-Fisher replied by whispering "if

[Chief Henry] asks, just say it's a hobby.”

17.  Approximately three days after returning to work, appellant again went
out on medical leave. The medication he was prescribed to treat nerve damage in his
arm interfered with his ability to drive. His treating physician preferred to give the
medication more time to work, rather than stop treatment to facilitate appellant’s

return to the office.

18.  On or about September 15, 2021, appellant’s physician authorized him to
return to light duty, with restrictions that prevented him from lifting over 20 pounds,
with the limitations decreasing over time as appellant continued to heal. The District
did not approve appellant's return to work request, as there were no light duty

assignments available.

19.  Appellant continued to grow his mushroom company and engaged in
the labor associated with cultivating and selling mushrooms and related products at
farmers markets and online. Chief Henry continued to hear about appellant’s
enterprise and became concerned appellant was performing work while on leave
outside of his medical restrictions. He informed the District's workers compensation
insurance provider of his concerns. Chief Henry was also concerned that appellant was
operating an outside business without authorization while on paid injury status, and

that he was using his status as a firefighter and District resources to promote sales.

20.  On February 11, 2022, appellant was released to return to full duties,
effective February 15, 2022. The District approved appellant’s return. Deputy Chief
McAfee informed appellant that he would initially report to the training division and

then join the fire academy the following week so his skills could be evaluated and



updated, as needed. Appellant objected to reporting to the training academy for new
cadets by email, as he was an experienced Fire Captain. He described his assignment
to the academy as “demeaning and ridiculous,” and “100% discrimination and

retaliation.”

21.  On February 14, 2022, Ms. Acosta-Fisher issued a memorandum to
appellant titled "RETURN TO WORK 40 HR. SCHEDULE.” The memorandum specified
appellant was being assigned to complete initial and refresher training on a variety of
skills due to his extended absence. Appellant was directed to report to the training
division to complete training or demonstrate proficiency in several tasks, including
self-contained breathing apparatus (SCBA) fit testing individual performance
evolutions (IPEs) on Friday, February 25, 2022, and hose loads and deployment IPEs
the following week. IPEs are training documents that include a list of specific tasks that

must be performed to correctly perform certain job functions.

22.  On or about February 15, 2022, Deputy Chief McAfee met with
appellant’s union representative and clarified that appellant was required to
demonstrate proficiency in certain tasks and complete specified training because he
had been off work for an extended period. They agreed appellant would not
participate in the training academy, but instead would be assigned to the training unit
to establish his proficiency. However, the District’s training unit was conducting the fire
cadet training academy during the week of February 22, 2022. To best utilize its
resources, the District decided to have appellant and another employee returning from
an extended leave complete some of their return-to-work training requirements at the
academy. Some tasks and training the employees were to complete were being taught

at the academy and all training instructors and proctors would be present.



23.  Captain Corey Cason is the District’s training officer and oversaw the

2022 training academy. Captain Cason was aware that appellant was unhappy about
attending the academy, as he overheard appellant openly voicing his displeasure. He
took steps to ensure appellant was not treated like a new cadet during the training
academy. This included making sure appellant did not have to participate in academy
functions, processes, or procedures, and making it clear to appellant that he was there
solely to capitalize on the training that was already occurring. Captain Cason made
sure appellant was not to perform any IPEs simultaneous with the recruits and made

sure all instructors in the cadre had this understanding as well.

THE TRAINING INCIDENT

24.  On February 25, 2022, appellant completed the SCBA fit testing IPEs, as
specified in the return-to-work memorandum previously issued to him. He performed
the required tasks while at the training academy, under the observation of two

proctors who thereafter signed the IPE confirming he performed the tasks as required.

25.  On or about March 1, 2022, appellant asked Captain Josh Holden to sign
the IPE specifying that appellant had demonstrated proficiency performing fire hose
pulling tasks. Appellant told Captain Holden that he had completed the required tasks.
However, appellant had not asked Captain Holden to observe him prior to reportedly
completing the required tasks. Captain Holden refused to certify that he had
performed the tasks proficiently, as he was focused on the new cadets and did not

observe or evaluate appellant completing the required tasks.

26.  Appellant then approached Captain Cason and asked him to sign the IPE.
He informed Captain Cason that other instructors or proctors had observed him

satisfactorily complete the fire hose pulling tasks. Captain Cason checked with the



other instructors. None of the instructors were comfortable verifying that appellant
had proficiently performed the required tasks. Some instructors stated they noticed
appellant was pulling fire hoses but were not told he was doing so to for evaluation,

and therefore did not observe him to ensure he completed the tasks correctly.

27.  Captain Cason refused to sign the IPE, as no one could confirm that
appellant performed the tasks proficiently. Appellant responded that he did not
appreciate him checking with the other instructors about the fire hose pulling tasks, as

he felt Captain Cason either thought or implied appellant was lying.

28.  Appellant continued to request that Captain Cason sign the IPE, despite
what the other instructors claimed, and asked Captain Cason to extend him a
professional courtesy. Captain Cason was offended by appellant’s request as he
understood appellant was asking him to misrepresent appellant’s abilities to the
District. The two raised their voices and argued in a manner that was loud enough to
attract the attention of the cadets and interrupt training. Captain Cason ended the
argument by walking to his vehicle and leaving. As he walked toward his vehicle,

appellant yelled at Cason stating, “go ahead and run and tell your boss.”

29.  Following his argument, appellant complained to Deputy Chief McAfee
that the District was arbitrarily changing his return-to-work requirements to
discriminate against him for being an injured worker. He also complained that the
District should have planned to have two superior officers observe him complete the
IPEs, rather than lower ranking individuals. Deputy Chief McAfee reported the
incidents to Chief Henry and had appellant’s direct supervisor, Battalion Chief Pavone,
observe appellant’s fire hose pull IPE. Appellant successfully performed the hose pull

IPE under Battalion Chief Pavone’s observation the following day. Appellant ultimately



completed all return-to-work requirements and returned to his regular duties as a Fire

Captain.

30.  After learning of appellant’s conduct during the training academy, Chief
Henry grew increasingly concerned about appellant’s fitness to serve as a Fire Captain.
He was concerned that appellant, as a Fire Captain in a leadership position, behaved
unprofessionally toward Captain Cason and insubordinately in response to written
directives from his superiors. Chief Henry was particularly troubled that appellant

displayed this behavior in front of a group of new cadets.

31.  Chief Henry asked Ms. Acosta-Fisher to look into appellant’s outside
business activities on the internet and on social media platforms. Ms. Acosta-Fisher
discovered information on appellant’s Facebook page and business website detailing
multiple products available for purchase from The Capn’s Mushroom Company,
utilizing online pay services such as Venmo and PayPal. The business website included
video footage from a local news station in which appellant discussed the benefits of
mushrooms and that he had sold his mushroom products to firefighters. There were

also multiple images of the District’s fire station on the business website.

32.  Onor about July 12, 2022, appellant submitted a completed work permit
application for The Capn’s Mushroom Company to the District. He attached a

handwritten note to the application that included the following statements:

The hobby has grown and someone just recently pointed
out that my hobby may be [sic] looked at like a business. I
am also turning this in because my hobby is growing larger

and may or may not become a full on business. I currently

10



make no profit, have no business license, or bank acct

associated with my hobby.
Internal Affairs Investigation

33.  Onor about July 18, 2022, the District retained Steve Badilla
Investigations, an independent investigation firm, to investigate appellant’s outside
business activities and the behavior appellant demonstrated during the training

academy. On July 21, 2022, appellant was placed on administrative leave.

34.  Mr. Badilla led the investigation himself. He is a retired Assistant Chief of
the California Highway Patrol. He is also a private investigator and certified equal
employment opportunity investigator and Peace Officer Standards and Training
internal affairs investigator. Mr. Badilla has conducted approximately 300 to 400

workplace investigation in total.

35.  The investigation included a review of appellant’s conduct, witness
interviews, a review of District policies, and a review of state and federal business
requirements. Virtually all of the District employees interviewed stated that appellant
frequently talked about his mushroom company at work and provided free samples of
his product to employees. Both Ms. Acosta-Fisher and Fire Marshal George Mavrikas
confirmed that they purchased products from appellant after trying his free samples.
Additionally, Engineer Andrea Nakamura reported that her Fire Captain, appellant’s
friend and colleague, instructed her to make mushroom pasta for their station using
appellant's mushrooms, at appellant's request. She was directed to do this so they
could take photographs and video of the crew cooking with appellant’'s mushrooms to

promote sales on his website.

11



36.  Both Captain Cason and Captain Holden told Mr. Badilla that appellant
asked them to certify on his IPEs that they observed him correctly and proficiently

perform tasks, which they did not actually observe in a formal setting.

37.  During appellant’s interview, he acknowledged that he used his position
as a Fire Captain with the District to give his mushroom company “legitimacy.” He
admitted he used photographs and video from the fire station to promote sales.
Appellant stated that he and a friend from college, Darren Wherry, operated The
Capn’s Mushroom Company to sell mushrooms to friends and family, at farmer's
markets, and online. They are sometimes assisted by Mr. Wherry's wife and also have
an employee they pay $20 per hour for his services. The company provides 24-hour
customer support and a money-back guarantee for those who purchase their

products.

38.  Appellant admitted that he did not seek an outside work permit from the
District until more than a year after he formed the mushroom company. Similarly, he
did not obtain a business license or file state of federal tax reporting documents
related to his mushroom company. However, he emphasized that he did not have to
do these things because his mushroom company was just a hobby and until recently

could not reasonably be considered a business.

39.  Appellant claimed the company barely makes enough money to cover
expenses. On one occasion, the company made $4,000 in one night during a Hmong
New Years Eve celebration. But that that was not the norm. Instead, appellant claimed
the company would usually make about $150 a night at the farmers market “if they

were lucky.”

12



40.  Appellant denied that he ever asked anyone to certify that he completed
tasked he had not performed during training. He claimed there was a lack of clarity
and guidance as to what he was required to do at the academy, which led to a
misunderstanding between him and Captain Cason. He believed Captain Cason
questioned his veracity in front of subordinates and trainees due to the
misunderstanding. He explained to Mr. Badilla that, in response, he asked to be shown

some professional courtesy as a colleague and fellow Fire Captain.

41.  Mr. Badilla established that appellant had received copies of all the
District policies related to the concerns raised by Chief Henry, and that appellant, as a
Fire Captain, was responsible for ensuring he understood and complied with those

policies.

42.  Mr. Badilla researched state and federal business reporting requirements
and determined that the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) requires all business
partnerships to obtain an Employer Identification Number (EIN) without exception. He
also found that the California Secretary of State requires business owners to obtain a
general business license in the city in which their business is located. Mr. Badilla
determined that an entity is “"doing business” in California if they actively engage in
any transaction for the purpose of financial gain within the state. (Rev. & Tax Code,

§ 23101, subd. (a).)

43.  On August 9, 2022, Mr. Badilla issued investigative reports that sustained

the following allegations:

e While [appellant] was on leave for his injury, he established The Capn’s
Mushroom Company and engaged in the business of growing and selling

mushrooms as a local vendor [without District authorization]. In doing so,

13



[appellant] violated policy when he failed to submit a work permit request
for a business for which he received remuneration. [Appellant] also failed to
comply with the work permit policy’s section prohibiting secondary

employment while on injury status.

o [Appellant] and his business partner ... failed to file required tax reporting
documents (EIN) with the IRS and the State Franchise Tax Board, failed to file
a Statement of Information with the Secretary of State, and failed to obtain a

municipal business license.

o [Appellant] utilized District equipment and worked on his side business, The

Captain Mushroom Company, while on duty at [the District].

o [Appellant] refused to participate in a required training program that was
assigned to him by the District to ensure that he remain proficient in
essential firefighting skills when he returned to work. During training,
[appellant] asked his training officer to sign off on a task for him even
though the proctors stated they had not seen [appellant] complete this task.
When the training officer refused to comply, [appellant] became
argumentative and then criticized the directive for him to train, command
management for making him participate in the training, and the training
officer for questioning whether he actually performed the task he claimed to

have completed.
Notice of Termination

44.  Based on the results of the investigation, Chief Henry issued appellant a
Notice of Intent to Discipline. After considering the information provided by appellant

in response to the Notice of Intent to Discipline, he determined that termination of

14



appellant’'s employment was necessary given the nature and extent of policy
violations. He issued a signed Notice of Termination to appellant on September 14,

2022.

45.  Chief Henry testified that the decision to terminate appellant was not an
easy decision. He generally prefers to engage in progressive discipline when
addressing employee misconduct. However, claimant’s behavior demonstrated that he
lacked the core values necessary to serve as a Fire Captain. This included appellant’s
claim that his mushroom company was a hobby rather than a business even though he
sold multiple mushroom products online through a website dedicated for that purpose
and had contracts to provide mushrooms and mushroom products to a local
restaurant and coffee shop on a continuing basis. Appellant also failed to obtain
approval from the District to operate an outside business and use his position as a
firefighter to promote sales for this unauthorized business. Most important, Chief
Henry concluded that appellant's attitude regarding his retraining and behavior at the

training academy were contrary to that of a Fire Captain.

46.  Chief Henry believes appeliant attempted to persuade his colleagues to
engage in dishonest and unethical conduct by certifying that he performed tasks they
had not observed. He also behaved in an unprofessional and disruptive manner when
he argued with Captain Cason and made disparaging remarks about the District and

his superiors in front of cadets.

47.  Chief Henry emphasized that as a Fire Captain appellant was in a position
of leadership and behaved in a manner that undermined the integrity of the District in
front of new recruits. He testified that this behavior negatively affects appellant’s
ability to lead and can result in safety issues in the field that may jeopardize lives. As
an alternative to termination, Chief Henry would have preferred to demote appellant

15



to a lower position within the District, such as engineer or firefighter. However,
appellant has never held those positions with the District and could not be demoted to
occupy positions with the District he has never held. Therefore, he determined that

termination was the only option, in the interest of public safety.
Appellant’s Defenses

48.  Appellant’s testimony at hearing was fairly consistent with the statements
he made to Mr. Badilla during the internal affairs investigation. He insisted his
mushroom company began as a hobby when he started to find natural alternatives to
pain medication. He partnered with Mr. Wherry, and the company grew quickly. Mr.
Wherry provided the logistical and financial support, and appellant grew the
mushrooms and prepared products for sale. He used his status as a fireman to

promote his business and sold products to his co-workers during off-duty hours.

49.  Appellant testified he waited more than a year to submit a work permit
application because Ms. Acosta-Fisher told him he did not need a permit if he claimed
his mushroom company was just a hobby. He claimed sales from the company have
never exceeded costs, and neither he nor Mr. Wherry have ever taken a salary. He then
testified that his “gross sales” were only about $20 a month when he started in early
2021 and were approximately $100 a month in or around February 2022. When
questioned about his statements to investigator Badilla that he earned $4,000 at a
single Hmong event in early 2022, appellant claimed that statement was an
exaggeration and that he “possibly” made around $1,000 instead. When asked how he
estimated such low monthly earnings, considering that the average price of the items
sold on the company’s website averaged $20 or more, appellant could provide no
substantive information. Instead, he stated he was just the farmer and that his partner

“deals with the money.”

16



50.  Appellant claimed there was confusion as to what his role would be at
the training academy during his return-to-work process. He asserted he was never
informed that he would have to complete any IPEs under formal observation until
February 25, 2022. On that date, while at the training academy, one of the training
captains informed him that Deputy Chief McAfee said he needed to complete IPEs for
SCBA fit testing under the observation of two proctors. Appellant was “super
confused” by the request but completed the SCBA required tasks “right then and

there,” to get it over with.

51.  The following week was “hose week,” at the academy. Appellant had
completed several "hose pulls” while assisting cadets with their training on that
function. Captain Cason and other trainers were in the area and saw him perform the
tasks several times while demonstrating it to cadets. He believed the instructors would
sign his hose pull IPE on that basis. When they did not and questioned whether he had
completed the task under formal observation, he became upset and felt he was again

being subjected to unlawful discrimination due to his injury.

52.  Appellant asserted that when he approached Captain Cason to discuss
the misunderstanding, Captain Cason became angry and accused him of “trying to be
sneaky” by performing tasks when no one was watching when he knew he was to be
observed to two proctors. He testified that, at this point, he realized “for the first time”
that he was required to complete his IPEs under the formal observation of two

individuals.

53.  He claimed Captain Cason was challenging him, yelling at him, and
accusing him of being a liar and calling him a “fucking a-hole,” in a raised voice. He

stated this was the behavior that prompted him to ask for some professional courtesy.

17



54.  In March 2022, appellant returned to his duties as a Fire Captain on
Engine 57. In addition to performing his regular duties, he also conducted a training
for the entire District. No one mentioned the training academy dispute with him until

he received the Notice of Intent to Discipline almost four months later.
Analysis
CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

55.  To uphold the discipline against appellant the District must establish that
he violated the policies identified in the Notice of Termination, and that those
violations are sufficiently egregious to warrant termination. Many of the facts are

undisputed.

56.  Appellant admitted he formed The Capn’s Mushroom Company while out
on medical leave from his District employment and sold products online, at farmers
markets, and entered into business agreements with at least one restaurant and a
coffee shop. He admitted he used his position to promote sales for his company and
provided free samples to coworkers for the same reason. He admitted he did not
submit a work permit application for the District’s approval until after his company had
been operating for 16 months. He filed no tax documents, obtained no business

license, and did not inform the Secretary of State of his business operations.
Failure to Obtain Authorization to Perform Outside Work

57.  Work Permit Policy 108.004 prohibits District employees from engaging
in outside work for compensation without prior authorization from the District. Both

Work Permit Policy 108.004 and Work Permit Application (NC — 02) 106.011 provide

18



that outside work permits are invalid for the duration of the time an employee is on

sick leave or receiving pay for a work-related injury.

58.  Appellant claimed no work permit was required for The Capn'’s
Mushroom Company because it was a hobby, rather than a business, that made little
to no profit. Additionally, he asserted he believed he did not have to submit a work
permit application to the District because Ms. Acosta-Fisher told him to just claim that

his mushroom company was a hobby if Chief Henry inquired.

59.  These claims were not persuasive for several reasons. First, appellant is
responsible for ensuring he complies with District policies—not Ms. Acosta-Fisher.
Second, appellant’s testimony regarding his business sales and profits was vague,
inconsistent, and unsupported by independent documentation that should be readily
available to him. Therefore, it received no weight. Third, The Capn’s Mushroom
Company is operated by two and sometimes three individuals, has or had one
employee on staff, and provides 24-hour customer support. These are not the
characteristics of a hobby. Finally, whether appellant considers his company a hobby
or a business, he engaged in outside work for remuneration without District
authorization when he sold mushroom products online, at farmers markets, and to a
restaurant and coffee shop on a recurring basis for compensation. This is what makes
appellant’s activities contrary to District policy, not whether he calls his enterprise a
"hobby.” Therefore, the District established that appellant violated Work Permit Policy
108.004 when he failed to secure an outside work permit prior to engaging in outside
work for which he received remuneration and violated both Work Permit Policy
108.004 and Work Permit Application (NC — 02) 106.011 when he engaged in

secondary employment while on injury status.

19



Failure to Comply with the Law Related to Business

Practices

60.  General Orders Policy 109.010, Section 12, provides that all members of
the District adhere to all laws and ordinances. Appellant engaged in ongoing
transactions in California for the purpose of financial gain while operating The Capn'’s
Mushroom Company. He appears to have collected taxable earnings from this
endeavor. He did not obtain a business license, nor file any tax documents with the IRS
or California Franchise Tax Board related to his business operations. Appellant’s
explanation for these failures was essentially the same as those he proffered for his
failure to obtain an outside work permit from the District: that The Capn’s Mushroom
Company is a hobby rather than a business based on the company’s reported minimal
earnings. This argument is rejected here on the same basis as before. The District
established that appellant violated General Order Policy 109.010, Section 12, by failing
to comply with the law requiring a business license and filing tax documents when

operating a business in California.
Misuse of District Status or Prestige

61.  General Conduct Policy 109.011, Section 3 prohibits members from using
their employment with the District for personal gain. Appellant admitted he used his
status as a firefighter and photographs and videos taken at the fire station to promote
The Capn’s Mushroom Company. These acts violated the prohibitions specified in

General Conduct Policy 109.011, Section 3.

20



Inappropriate Behavior During Training

62.  The District has multiple policies regulating employee behavior. General
Conduct Policy, 109.011, Section 10, prohibits members from engaging in acts that
disrupt District morale or discredit the District or any District employee. General
Conduct Policy, 109.011, Section 20, prohibits members from willfully disobeying
lawful orders issued by superior. All Officers Policy, 109.002, Section 19, requires that
officers be supportive of District policy and refrain from making derogatory
statements, while in the presence of subordinates. Fire Captain Policy 109.006, Section
1, provides that Captains must always set a good example for those under their
command and require subordinates to meet District standards. Duty of All Members
Policy, 109.009, Section 21, provides that all members of the District participate in drills

and other training activities as directed.

63.  The District established that during the Spring 2022 Training Academy,
while in the presence of new cadets, appellant was critical of the return-to-work
process ordered by his superiors and made derogatory comments about the directives
issued to him by Deputy Chief McAfee and Chief Henry. Appellant also attempted to
circumvent the retraining certification process by asking the trainers to certify that he

satisfactorily performed tasks they had not formally observed.

64.  Appellant claims his request was misunderstood due a lack of clear
training directives. However, as a Fire Captain, appellant is expected to address any
misunderstanding or ambiguity in his assignment in a courteous, professional, and
respectful manner. He failed to meet this expectation and his conduct constituted
violations of General Conduct Policy, 109.011, Sections 10 and 20; All Officers Policy,
109.002, Section 19; Fire Captain Policy 109.006, Section 1; and Duty of All Members

Policy, 109.009, Section 21.
21



DISCIPLINARY CONSIDERATIONS

65.  Although appellant only worked as a Captain for the District for a brief
period before taking an extended medical leave, he has reportedly worked in fire
protection service for more than 25 years. He held a leadership position with the
District and knew he was expected to always exhibit the highest professional

standardes.

66. It appears that appellant resents District leadership, as he repeatedly
disregarded District policy and directives from his superiors. Whether that resentment

is justified or not is inconsequential to this action.

67.  Appellant was provided all relevant District policies shortly after he
began working for the District. He is responsible for ensuring he understood those
policies and remained in compliance with them. Nevertheless, appellant created and
operated a company while on medical leave that sold mushrooms and mushroom
products on a recurring basis for compensation—in an amount not established at

hearing.

68.  Appellant was aware that these outside business activities required
advanced approval from the District. He was issued the Work Permit Policy 108.004
shortly after being hired, which expressly provides that District approval is required
prior to engaging in outside employment. In or around April 2021, he discussed
getting a work permit with Ms. Acosta-Fisher when telling her about his company and

its products.

69. He continued to operate The Capn’s Mushroom Company without
requesting a permit for over a year. When he finally submitted the work permit

application, he claimed he did so because his hobby had grown and “someone had

22



just recently pointed out that his hobby may be perceived as a business,” despite

having discussed this same issue with Ms. Acosta-Fisher more than a year prior.

70.  When appellant returned to full duties, he resisted reporting to the
training academy as directed by his superiors. When he reported to the academy, he
tried to circumvent the certification process and engaged in a loud and unprofessional
argument with his training officer. While appellant claims this dispute resulted from his
failure to receive clear directives, his explanation seems disingenuous given that he
was issued the return-to-work memorandum that specified the tasks he was to
perform, prior to reporting to the academy. Additionally, there were several trainers
nearby that could have clarified procedures, if asked, and appellant had demonstrated
proficiency in performing SCBA fit tests while being observed by two proctors, as

required, at the training academy the preceding week.

71.  Chief Henry testified that appellant’s conduct and failure to comply with
several District policies demonstrated that he lacked the core values associated with
District leadership. Particularly, he saw no way that appellant could continue to serve
as a Fire Captain for the District given his dishonesty and attempts to coerce his

colleagues to engage in misrepresentations that could jeopardize public safety.

72.  Chief Henry testified that there is no mechanism to demote appellant to
a position with the District he has never held before. Therefore, termination of

appellant’s employment was his only option.

73.  That appellant worked as a Fire Captain, rather than in some capacity
wholly unrelated to public safety has been strongly considered. Chief Henry's opinions
that a lack of core values or integrity in leadership at the District can negatively affect

public safety is given some deference, as he is a career firefighter with decades of

23



firsthand experience. He is also given some discretion as the District’s appointing
authority to be well suited to determine the impact of employee misconduct. (See,
Legal Conclusion 15.). Chief Henry’s concerns about dishonesty are well established for

first responders.

74.  In Gee v. California State Personnel Board (1970) 5 Cal.App.3d 713, the
court considered the case of an employee disciplined for making false statements on a
license application. The court held that ” ‘Dishonesty’ connotes a disposition to
deceive.’ [citation] It ‘denotes an absence of integrity; a disposition to cheat, deceive or
defraud. ...." " (/d, at pp. 718-719.) A single incident of dishonesty could justify
termination of the public employee because “[h]onesty is not considered an isolated

or transient behavioral act; it is more of a continuing trait of character.” (/d, at p. 719.)

75.  In Ackerman v. State Personnel Board (1983) 145 Cal.App.3d 395, the
court approved a dismissal for dishonesty of a Highway Patrol officer who stole State
property and lied during the department’s investigation, stating that the honesty of a
peace officer is the essence of his function. A similar conclusion was reached by the
court in Paulino v. Civil Service Commission (1985) 175 Cal.App.3d 962. There, the San
Diego County Sheriff dismissed a deputy for falsification of sick leave reports and

dishonesty in the internal affairs investigation of the matter. The court stated:

A deputy sheriff's position is a position of trust. A deputy
sheriff is held to the highest standards of behavior. His
honesty and credibility are crucial to the proper
performance of his duties. Dishonesty in matters of public

trust is intolerable.
(Paulino, supra, 175 Cal.App.3d at p. 972.)

24



76.  All the evidence and arguments have been considered. Chief Henry's
conclusion that appellant should be terminated from employment was reasonable and

warranted given all of the surrounding circumstances and is upheld.

LEGAL CONCLUSIONS

The Burden and Standard of Proof

1. The appointing authority has the burden of proving by a preponderance
of the evidence all affirmative issues on which disciplinary action is based. (Brown v.

City of Los Angeles (2002) 102 Cal.App.4th 155, 175.)
Applicable Authority

2. The District may terminate any employee, in compliance with the
Firefighters Procedural Bill of Rights, for violation of District policies. (Gov. Code

§§ 3250-3262.)

3. The Guide to Corrective Action Policy 111.001, provides, in pertinent part,
that “[t]lermination should be used [as a corrective action] when the offense or

situation is so serious that retention is not acceptable ... ."

4. Work Permit Policy 108.004 provides that “[n]o full-time employee is to
engage in or work at any other remunerative occupation without first obtaining an

outside work permit from the District.”

1 Both Work Permit Policy 108.004 and Work Permit Application (NC - 02)
106.011 provide that work permits are not valid for the duration of the time an

employee is on sick leave or receiving pay for a work-related injury.

25



6. General Orders Policy 109.010, Section 12, provides that all members of
the District ... are subject to the rules and regulations and orders concerning the
government of the District, particularly rules and regulations relating to conduct,

discipline, and adherence to laws and ordinances.”

7. General Conduct Policy 109.011, Section 3, prohibits members from using

their uniform, badge, or prestige of the District for personal gain.

8. General Conduct Policy, 109.011, Section 10, provides that members “will
not be a party to any ... activity that would tend to disrupt the District morale or bring

discredit to the District or any member thereof.”

9. General Conduct Policy, 109.011, Section 20, provides that members “will
not willfully disobey any lawful order issued by superior officer, or speak

disrespectfully of, or to, any superior officer. All are cause for disciplinary action.”

10.  All Officers Policy, 109.002, Section 19, provides that "in the presence of
subordinates, officers will be supportive of District policy and refrain from making

statements of a derogatory nature.”

11.  Fire Captain Policy 109.006, Section 1, provides that “a Captain, as the
only officer whose command is at all times under their immediate supervision and
control, must remain constantly vigilant and while setting an especially good example,

require their commands measure up to the standards of the [District].”

12.  Duty of All Members Policy, 109.009, Section 21, provides that all
members of the District participate in drills and other District training activities as

directed and perform related work as required.

26



Cause for Discipline

13. By reason of the matters set forth in Findings 55 through 64, it is
determined that appellant engaged in conduct in violation of Work Permit Policy
108.004; Work Permit Application (NC — 02) 106.011; General Orders Policy 109.010,
Section 12; General Conduct Policy 109.011, Section 3; General Conduct Policy,
109.011, Section 10; General Conduct Policy, 109.011, Section 20; All Officers Policy,
109.002, Section 19; Fire Captain Policy 109.006, Section 1; and Duty of All Members
Policy, 109.009, Section 21.

Termination is Appropriate

14.  When all the evidence is considered, termination of appellant’s
employment is appropriate to ensure public safety. Although appellant has no record
of serious discipline, Chief Henry persuasively testified that allowing appellant to
remain a Fire Captain with the District, which is a position with significant leadership,
could undermine the integrity of the District and pose a significant risk to public safety

in light of the critical duties firefighters perform daily.

15.  In civil service employment, the appointing authority has broad
discretion to select an appropriate penalty for a violation of civil service rules, and the
exercise of that discretion should not be disturbed unless the penalty is unreasonable,
clearly excessive, or constitutes an abuse of the appointing authority’s discretion.
(Cummings v. Civil Service Com. (1995) 40 Cal.App.4th 1643; Talmo v. Civil Service
Com. (1991) 231 Cal.App.3d 210.) This reflects an important policy consideration: the
employing agency—not the reviewing body—is in the best position to judge the
impact of employee misconduct on the operations of an agency, the prospects for the

employee’s rehabilitation and improvement, and the need to maintain and encourage

27



high standards of conduct by all employees. (Beard v. General Services Admin. (D.C.
Cir. 1986) 801 F.2d 1318, 1320-21; Weiss v. United States Postal Service (1st Cir. 1983)
700 F.2d 754, 758-59.) Here, the District’s action in terminating appellant was

reasonable and it did not constitute an abuse of its discretion.
RECOMMENDATION

The appeal of Jeremy Savitt of his dismissal by the North Central Fire Protection
District is DENIED. The termination of Jeremy Savitt from employment as a Fire Captain

is AFFIRMED.

DATE: July 7, 2023 Ed Washington
ED WASHINGTON
Administrative Law Judge

Office of Administrative Hearings

28



